Public Document Pack

Democratic Services Section
Chief Executive’s Department
Belfast City Council

City Hall

Belfast

BT1 5GS

Belfast
City Council

2nd November, 2016

MEETING OF PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

The above-named Committee will meet in the Lavery Room - City Hall on Tuesday, 8th
November, 2016 at 4.30 pm, for the transaction of the business noted below.

You are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully,

SUZANNE WYLIE

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

1. Routine Matters

(a) Apologies
(b) Minutes
(c) Declarations of Interest

2. Committee/Strategic Issues

(a) Connswater Community Greenway progress update (Pages 1 - 2)

(b) Minutes of Meeting of the Strategic Cemetery and Crematorium Development
Working Group (To Follow)

(c) Fuel Poverty Update (Pages 3 - 16)

3. Physical Programme and Asset Management

(a) Official recognition of the “White Stone on Cave Hill” (Pages 17 - 22)

(b) Keyholding Agreement with Clonard Residents Association (Pages 23 - 26)



2.
(c) Renewal of Licence to Use Agreement with Grow (Pages 27 - 44)

(d) BMX Race Track (Pages 45 - 48)

4. Finance, Procurement and Performance

(a) Parks Events Small Grants Scheme (Pages 49 - 52)
(b) Hire Charges for Council Pitches (To Follow)

5. Operational Issues

(a) Anti-Social Behaviour (Citywide and Holylands) (Pages 53 - 62)
(b) Pride of Place Gala Event 2016 (Pages 63 - 66)

(c) Management and Control of Japanese Knotweed (Pages 67 - 70)
(d) Street Naming/Dual Language (Pages 71 - 74)

(e) Cancer Research UK - use of Ormeau Park (Pages 75 - 76)

(f)  World 24 hour Running Championship 2017 - Victoria Park (Pages 77 - 78)



Agenda ltem 2a

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: Connswater Community Greenway progress update

Date:

8 November 2016

Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department

Contact Officer: Rose Crozier, Assistant Director City & Neighbourhood Services

Department
Elaine Black, Policy and Business Development Officer

Is this report restricted? Yes No X

Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the plans to ensure the sustainable
animation of the Connswater Community Greenway (the Greenway) as a ‘living landmark’,
in partnership with Connswater Community Greenway Trust (CCGT).

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to;

o Grant authority for officers to develop proposals to review the existing joint
partnership arrangement and to collaboratively develop with CCGT the ongoing
management and animation arrangements for the Greenway, post-construction.

3.0 Main report

3.1 As a result of a successful bid for Big Lottery funding led by Eastside Partnership in 2007,
Council has a legal agreement with East Belfast Partnership Board (now known as
Eastside Partnership) and this includes a 40 year commitment to maintain and manage the
Greenway.

3.2 The Council, Big Lottery and Rivers Agency along with CCGT (a subsidiary company of

Eastside Partnership) are the key partners on the strategic oversight group and operational

project delivery board during and post construction of the Greenway.

Page 1



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Both Council and CCGT acknowledge the advantages of working in partnership and the
benefits each organisation brings to developing the Greenway as a living landmark. The
CCGT has played and continues to fulfil an important ‘champion’ role, ensuring that the
local community and further afield, form and sustain connections to the Greenway. In turn,
this has positive regeneration outcomes in relation to health, volunteering and reducing

anti-social behaviour.

Now, with a year until completion, the Delivery Board chaired by the Council, has
considered it timely to review achievements to date and ongoing animation needs post-

construction.

It is therefore proposed that the Council engages with CCGT to develop and design future

partnership arrangements, for consideration at a future Committee.

The new partnership arrangements will seek to build on existing practice and integrate
‘best in class’ collaborative practice. The primary objective will be to protect and sustain
this living landmark, delivering maximum regeneration benefit and delivering good value for
money. This will align with the City and Neighbourhood Services Departmental change
programme. The Town Solicitor will provide any necessary legal advice as part of the

review and development process.
As part of this development process, an animation plan for 2017 will be brought to

Committee for its consideration. Funding to support the project is available up to end 2017

and project performance reporting is carried out on a quarterly basis.

Financial & Resource Implications

There are no financial implications at this stage.

Equality or Good Relations Implications

Any amendments to the existing arrangements will be equality screened, prior to

presentation to Committee.

4.0

Appendices — documents attached

4.1

None

Page 2




Agenda Iltem 2¢

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: Fuel Poverty Update

Date: 8™ November 2016

Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department

Contact Officer- Siobhan Toland, Assistant Director, City & Neighbourhood Services
Department.

Is this report restricted? Yes No X

Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of report or summary of main Issues

1.1 Members will recall that reports on the Affordable Warmth Scheme were considered at

both the June and August Committees.

1.2 At its September meeting, Council agreed that a report be submitted to a future meeting of
the People and Communities Committee on the feasibility of amending the terms of
reference for the Reference Group on Older People to allow for it to address the issue of
fuel poverty or of introducing some other mechanism, given that fuel poverty was not

restricted solely to older people.

1.3 This report provides an update to Members on the work the Council currently undertakes to
support households suffering from fuel poverty and the steps it is taking through the winter
planning group to improve and better co-ordinate this. The report also provides Members
with an update on correspondence received from the Department for Communities and
recent meetings between the Department and officers delivering the Affordable Warmth

Scheme. All relevant correspondence can be found in Appendix 1.

14 The report also provides an update to Members on the work the Council and other partners
are proposing in relation to the provision of winter warmth packs for vulnerable households

in the city.

Page 3



2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to

¢ Note the contents of this report.

3.0

Main Issues

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

All Party reference Group on Older People

The Reference Group met on 21st September to consider the motion referred to in
paragraph 1.2 and were updated on the Council discussion on the issue of fuel poverty.
Members agreed this is a priority for the Council and is an important issue when
considering older people’s needs. It was agreed that it continued to be raised at this

Committee when considering affordable warmth and fuel poverty issues.

Winter Planning Group For Older People

The need for a joined up approach to winter planning with older people was raised through
priority actions identified by the Greater Belfast Seniors Forum, discussions in Belfast
Healthy Ageing Strategic Partnership (HASP) steering group and links with the Public
Health Agency (PHA) about the distribution of winter warmth packages. The Winter
Planning Group (See Appendix 2) was established:
= To co-ordinate information to older people before or just as cold period starts-key
contacts, keeping warm, avoiding or acting on burst pipes-also making sure key
contacts are reachable, explore the expert patient/self-management approach
= To ensure a joined up approach to fuel poverty and coordinate benefit uptake,
encourage a warm zones approach
= To keep up to date with Emergency planning and build on work from previous
years, review any lessons learned and changes needed with older people and a

range of contacts.

At the last meeting it was agreed that there is potential for additional cross referral between
the affordable warmth scheme, home safety check scheme, the chronic disease hub, AGE
NI First Connect service and National Energy Action. The agencies are working together

to consider how this can be achieved.

Affordable Warmth Scheme Update

The Council’'s Affordable Warmth team continues to deliver 46 completed surveys to

Northern Ireland Housing Executive per month as specified in the current Service Level
Agreement between the Council and the Department for Communities (DfC). To date, the

scheme has installed 1378 energy efficiency measures in 879 homes in Belfast. The value

Page 4




3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

of approvals issued is just under £3.5 million.

While the scheme is primarily targeted, the Council receives a high number of enquiries
and self-referrals. Each self-referral is assessed for eligibility and a triage system is used to
prioritise each case. High priority cases are dealt with first i.e. households with broken
heating systems or no central heating system at all. The Service Level Agreement states
that that no more than 20% of the 46 surveys can be self-referrals. The Affordable Warmth
Coordinator recently met with DfC to discuss the possibility of flexibility on this percentage
due to an increasing number of high priority cases over the winter months. DfC
acknowledged the issue and it was agreed that an increase in the percentage of self-
referrals due to the number of high priority cases could be acceptable, provided that any
deviations are discussed with the Department. The possibility of increasing the monthly
target of 46 was also discussed, the Department will keep the Council informed if extra

funding becomes available.

The affordable warmth co-ordinator works closely with colleagues across the Council. She
attends the Winter Planning meetings and will be providing an update on the Affordable

Warmth Scheme to the Council’s All Party Reference Group on Older People.

If householders are not eligible for the Affordable Warmth Scheme, they are referred to the
NIHE Boiler Replacement Scheme and other energy efficiency grant schemes through
National Energy Action. Project officers also offer energy efficiency advice and refer
householders to other Council services such as the Home Safety Check Scheme, the ‘Be

Warm’ Fuel Stamp Scheme and other Council Departments where appropriate.

Other Fuel Poverty Measures

The home safety team complete 1,200 family home safety checks per year. The Council, in
partnership with the PHA and the Trust, delivers the “Home Safety and Repair Service” for
people aged 65 and over living in the Belfast City Council area; as part of this scheme a
further 500 home safety checks are completed. These home visits give officers an insight
into individuals’ living conditions and staff are aware of how to identify if anyone is living in
fuel poverty (document attached). Because of the link between increased home accidents
(e.g. falls and unintentional injury) for those living in cold homes, the regional home safety

check form collates information relating to home heating.

Based on this information the home safety team make referrals to the Affordable Warmth

Page 5




3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

team and agencies such as Bryson Energy and National Energy Action. The home safety
officer sits on the winter planning meetings where fuel poverty is discussed.

Environmental Health Officers, when carrying out their housing duties, come across
individuals living in fuel poverty and will also make referrals to the various schemes and

agencies listed above.

Be Warm Fuel Stamp Scheme

Our fuel stamp scheme 'Be Warm', helps householders save for home heating oil, by
spreading the cost of their fuel. Residents can buy oil stamps from participating retailers,
collect them on a savings card and use the value of the stamps to pay for all or part of your
oil when placing an order. The scheme is available throughout Belfast. Stamps can be
purchased from 35 retailers and are accepted by 47 Oil Suppliers. To date the scheme

has sold £1.5 million worth of stamps.

Winter Warmth Packs

Each year the Council procures 600 children’s winter warm packs on behalf of the Public

Health Agency. These packs are distributed by 9 Sure Starts in Belfast to families with
young children (under 5) who meet the criteria. An additional £11,000 funding will be spent
on older persons’ winter packs next month. These packs will be procured by HASP and
Age NI and provided to community groups and organisations who will distribute them to

individuals who meet the criteria (See Appendix 3).

The Council also holds a number of packs in reserve. These are used to support
vulnerable adults or groups and to assist the Council’'s response in the event of an

exceptional cold spell.

The criteria to determine eligibility for a pack were agreed previously by Committee. The
procedure to be followed for the distribution of packs was recently reviewed by Audit
Governance and Risk Services. Both this and the eligibility criteria can be found in

Appendix Three.

Financial & Resource Implications

There are no Financial, Human Resources, Assets and other implications in this report.
However it is noted that the reduced funding for the affordable warmth scheme in 2016/17

will require a review of resource.

Page 6




Equality or Good Relations Implications

3.15 | There are no direct Equality implications.
4.0 Appendices - Documents Attached
4.1 Appendix 1 - Correspondence with the DFC re Affordable Warmth Scheme

Appendix 2 - Membership of Winter Planning Group

Appendix 3 - Eligibility Criteria for receiving a winter warmth pack.

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank



Department for
Communities

WWW.COMIMUNIties-nilgov.uK

From: The Private Secretary ' 5t Floor
Lighthouse Building
1 Cromae Place
Gasworks Business Park
Ormean Road
Belfast
BT7 2JB

e-mail: Private Office@communities-ni.gov.uk
Tel: (028) 80829034

Ms Sara Steele
Democratic Services Section

Belfast City Council - Our ref: INV-1495-2016
Chief Exectuive’s Department

City Hall | .
BELFAST ' |9t September 2016
BT15GS

Dear Ms Steele

Thank you for your letter dated 8 September 2016 requesting a meeting with Minister
Givan MLA to discuss the wider fuel poverty agenda.

Minister and his predecessors have received a number of requests from Belfast City
Councit to discuss fuel poverty. Minister has asked me to reassure the Council that
fuel poverty is a key priority for this Department. Officials met with Council
representatives on 24 May 2016. Minister Givan MLA met with Suzanne Wlie,
Belfast City Council Chief Executive and Party representatives from Belfast City
Council on 13 September 2016 to discuss a partnership approach to delivery on
common priotities for Belfast and the region. This included the Department’s
proposed Social Strategy, which will include fuel poverty. Minister Givan reassured
the representatives during that meeting that they would be consulted regarding the
development of the Executive’s Social Strategy.

| am sure you can appreciate that Minister's diary is very committed; however, in the
event that Minister is unavailable senior officials can meet to discuss areas of
concem. Where concerns are identified Officials will provide feedback to Minister for
consideration,

£

& ‘:\; INVESTORS
Sy ¢F IN PEOPLE

2




Members of the Democratic Services Committee may have been unaware that

Minister Givan met with the Council on 13 September 2016, You may wish to speak
to Ms Wylie to obtain an update on the meeting.

Yours sincerely

Q@ PAMELA BAXTER

Private Secretary




Departmentof |

From the Office of the Minister

. Finance
On Aire
An Roinn
Airgeadais
mwv’ﬁnénce—ni‘gov.uk
Tel: 0289081 6711
Guth:
E-mail: private.ofﬁce@ﬁnance~n¥.gov.gk
Mrs Sara Steele R-phost:
Democratic Services Section Your reference:
Belfast City Council Do thagairt:
Chief Executive’'s Department Qur reference:  INV/1221/2016
City Hall ‘ Ar dtagairt:
Belfast
BT1 5GS
s August 2016
Dear S(‘}(O;' e e e e e . __ P vt v e ke e e e e

Thank you for your lefter of 1% August 2016 to Mairtin O Muilleoir MLA requesting a
meeting fo discuss funding including a mechanism for reallocation of underspends for
the Affordable Warmth Scheme.

The Minister has read your letter and whilst he appreciates the Council Members’
concerns and frustration, it is the Minister for Communities to determine the priorities
within his budget. :

The Minister would encourage you to pursue your engagement with Department for
Communities at both official and Ministerial level.

On this occasion, the Minister therefore respectfully declines your invitation,

Yours sincerely

G Caboon

PP sEAN KERR o
PRIVATE SECRETARY TO MAIRTIN O MUILLEOIR

2" Floor Clare House 303 Airport Road West Belfast BT3 9ED
2" Urlar, Aras an Chlgir, 303 Béthar an Aerfoirt lartharach, Béal Feirste, BT3 9ED

Page 11




Page 12




Appendix Two

Winter Planning Group (Membership)

Members are:
e Age-friendly Belfast/Healthy Ageing Strategic Partnership
Belfast City Council Emergency planning
Belfast City Council Home Safety
Belfast City Council Affordable Warmth Scheme
Belfast Health Development Unit
BHSCT Health improvement team
BHSCT Chronic disease Hub
Red Cross
NEA
NIHE
Age Partnership Belfast-Volunteer Now, North Belfast Senior Citizens Forum and
Engage with age

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Keep Warm Packs 2016

(To be completed for each recipient)

Please indicate on the form below how the recipient meets the criteria for receipt of
a Keep Warm Pack and complete personal details on reverse.

The Keep Warm Packs are available for distribution to those who:

1. are experiencing fuel poverty and
2. have not received a Keep Warm Pack from a different source in the last year
3. fallinto one of the following categories listed below:
4. and are not linked in with any of the other keep warm pack providers

All persons requesting a pack will be contacted by the Health and Well Being Team

to assess need, so please provide a contact number.

Category

Details

Tick all that
apply

(a) Adult with an underlying
cold-related iliness or
illness that makes them
more vulnerable in the
cold

Asthma

Chronic bronchitis or emphysema

Coronary heart disease

Stroke and TIA

Disability that makes them less mobile

Any long-term condition that worsens in
the winter

(b) People aged 65+

Other

(if a client does not meet any
of the above criteria but would
benefit from a pack to
combat the effects of living in
a cold home)

Please give reason:

Page 15



http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwizhZPsg-nPAhWKuRQKHZDpAkcQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.lkcommunications.co.uk%2Four-clients%2Fcase-study%2Fbelfast-city-council-cultural-tourism-events&psig=AFQjCNFfk2Xuyd6vvCokYyTRlKv55ZJbug&ust=1477040783519949

PLEASE RETURN TO:

Environmental Health, The Cecil Ward Building, 4-10 Linenhall Street, BT28BP

Name of the Recipient:

Address of the Recipient:

Postcode of recipient:

Contact number: Best time to calle

Sex:

| Male: | | Female: |

Size Recieved:

Small (Ladies only) | Medium Large Extra Large

Provided by (organisation name):

Date:

Page 16



Agenda ltem 3a

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: Official recognition of the “White Stone on Cave Hill”
Date: 8™ November 2016
Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department

Rose Crozier, Assistant Director City & Neighbourhood Services
Contact Officer: Department

Paula Irvine, Community Parks Outreach Manager

Is this report restricted? Yes No X
Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 This paper seeks approval from the Committee for the installation of a granite plaque to

recognise the importance of the white stone situated on Cave Hill.

1.2 Cave Hill Conservation Campaign have put forward a formal request for official recognition
of the historic landmark to the Northern Ireland Environment Agency (NIEA) and it has
been confirmed that the stone is in fact a historic landmark and the location of the stone

will be added to the new historic environment map viewer.

1.3 Cave Hill Conservation Campaign would therefore like to mark the stone with a plaque

detailing the role it played during World War II.

14 The wording for the plaque can be found at Appendix 1 and the material suggested for

the plaque is granite so as to blend in with the natural surroundings.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to;

e Note the recent acknowledgement by NIEA of the white stone on Cave Hill as a historic

Page 17



landmark and approve the installation of a plaque that details its importance and historical

facts.

3.0

Main report

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Cave Hill Conservation Campaign group act as a Friends group for Cave Hill and works
closely with the Council to promote Cave Hill Country Park as a free accessible and valuable open
space for the citizens of Belfast and tourists from further afield. They work tirelessly to preserve
the natural environmental and historical aspects of the country park. Following some public interest
regarding the origin of the white stone, the friends group set out to substantiate the story of why

the stone was painted and more recently has been restored to white.

The tale was that during World War II a man named William Caulfield was entrusted by the then
“War Department” with painting the stone white. He was to keep it as such for the duration of the
war. This was for the purpose of establishing a navigational landmark for aircraft coming in to land
at Nutts Corner airfield and Langford military airbase. William was paid £5 for his services but it’s
unclear if this was a one off or yearly payment. William was a postman who lived with his wife
Ellen (Nelly) and family in “Cave Hill” cottage which stands today just beyond where Upper Cave
Hill Road ends.

Members of the friends group contacted the Caulfield family who confirmed the story and so with
the family’s oral history evidence and extensive other research the story of the “White Stone”

unfolded.

Evidence shows the White Stone of Cave Hill was albeit a silent witness to the events that took
place over Belfast in World War II. These facts are a reminder of the role played by the stone and

attributed to it in this the 75" year after the bombing of Belfast.

Looking at the stone it appears as one, when in fact it is three slabs of basalt rock. They were
formed some 60 million years ago and welded together by volcanic action. The stone can be seen

most days from areas in the North and East of the city, shinning bright in all its former glory.

The Conservation Campaign are keen to recognise the historical importance of the stone and have
been working with McAdams Memorials to design a plaque that will be in keeping with the natural
landscape. All designs and wording will be agreed by Council officers before installation.

Financial & Resource Implications

It is estimated that the cost to erect the granite plaque will be no more than £200.00 and this cost

will be met by the revenue that the friends group generates through their good work on Cave Hill

Page 18




and neighbouring area.

3.7
Human Resources
There are no human resource implications with this request
Asset and Other Implications
3.8 The plaque will provide a historical note for those visiting Cave Hill as to why the stone is
painted and maintained white. Cave Hill Conservation Campaign are keen to improve
methods of information sharing on the hill therefore bettering the visitor experience.
3.9
Equality or Good Relations Implications
There are no equality or good relations implications with this request
3.10
4.0 Appendices — Documents Attached
4.1 Appendix 1 — Wording for the plaque.

Page 19




This page is intentionally left blank



|LZ abed

"The White Stone Of Cave Hill"
During World War 2
William Adair Caulfield,
of Cave Hill Cottage,
was commissioned
by The War Department
to paint this stone
and keep it white as a
Navigatiomal Ald for AirCraift.

Erected by

Cawve Hill Conservation Campaign
30th October 2016




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3b

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: Keyholding Agreement with Clonard Residents Association
Date: 8t November 2016
Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department

Rose Crozier, Assistant Director City & Neighbourhood Services

Contact Officer: Department

Stephen Walker, Portfolio and Programme Manager

Is this report restricted? Yes No X
Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from the Committee to enter into a key

holding agreement with Clonard Residents’ Association in relation to the Playground and

recently constructed multi user games areas at Springfield Avenue / Forfar Way in West

Belfast.
2.0 Recommendations
2.1 The Committee is asked to;

e Note the report and agree to enter into a key holding agreement with Clonard
Residents’ Association in relation to the playground and multi user games area at

Springfield Avenue / Forfar way.

3.0 Main report

3.1 The Committee is reminded that the former Department for Social Development owned a
piece of land which was located between Springfield Avenue and Forfar Way as outlined

in Appendix 1. This land is adjacent to an existing Civic Amenity Site. DSD had initially

proposed to provide the playground and the MUGA on the site. However, during the

Page 23



design phase of the project it was established that the area designated for the MUGA was
contaminated. DSD undertook to remediate the land but as a result the budget was
expended and the Department was unable to construct the MUGA as intended. The

playground and the additional land did however transfer to Council.

3.2 Council subsequently agreed as part of its MUGA programme to provide the facility as
originally intended. The work on this is nearing completion.

3.3 The site has had a history of anti social behaviour and during the construction of the
MUGA representations were made by residents regarding young people accessing the
construction site and causing a nuisance. Members are asked to note that the Planning
Service has placed a restriction on the site. The floodlighting can only be used up to
7.00 pm.

3.4 The facility will continue to be opened and closed by Council Officers. Discussions have
taken place with the Clonard Residents’ Association who have premises in close proximity
to the site. The Association has been involved in the project from its inception and is
aware of the issues in the area. The Association has agreed to take on a key holding role
to demonstrate local commitment and ownership of the site and to address issues of anti-
social behaviour particularly those outside of normal operating hours. It is therefore
proposed to enter into a key holding agreement with the Association to provide a watching
brief and fulfil an intervention role as the need arises.

Financial & Resource Implications

3.5 There are no additional financial implications at this time.
Equality or Good Relations Implications

3.6 There are no Equality Implications

4.0 Appendices — Documents Attached

4.1 Appendix 1 — Site Map

Page 24




Rev Date Description D Ckd App

Client

Project

[0}
Q

Drawing

Scale

Drawn Checked Approved
Date Date Date

Project No Drawing No Revision

All dimensions are in millimetres. Figured dimensions to be taken in preference to
scaled dimensions. Dimensions to be checked on site. © 2010 McAdam Design Ltd




Agenda Item 3c

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subiject: Renewal of Licence to Use Agreement with Grow

Date:

8t November 2016

Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department

Contact Officer:

Rose Crozier, Assistant Director City & Neighbourhood Services

Department

Stephen Walker, Portfolio and Programme Manager

Is this report restricted? Yes No X
Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No
1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from the Committee to renew the Licence to
Use with Grow in relation to land at Waterworks Park.
2.0 Recommendations
2.1 The Committee is asked to:
¢ note the report and agree to renew the Licence to Use agreement with Grow in
relation to the provision of a community garden within Waterworks Park for a period
of 2 years and;
e agree to confer delegated authority to the Director of City and Neighbourhood
Services to extend the agreement for up to a further 3 years subject to review and
the Director’s satisfaction that the project remains sustainable.
3.0 Main report
3.1 The Committee is reminded that the Council has permitted Grow to use land at

Waterworks Park to provide a community garden. This arrangement has been in place
since 2010. The existing Licence to Use (Appendix 1 and 2) agreement terminates on 31st

December 2016. Grow has secured new funding from the Rank Foundation, this funding

Page 27



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

has been in place since January 2016 and will continue for a further 2 years until
December 2018.

The existing Licence to Use is predicated on current funding from Big Lottery. Members
will be aware that in entering agreements it is necessary for Council to satisfy itself that the
terms and conditions of the funding do not place an undue burden on the Council or its
assets. It is therefore practice to establish agreements which reflect the terms and

conditions of funding and protect the Council and its assets.

In discussions with Grow, they have sought additional security of tenure over and above
the term of the funding. Grow has also highlighted that as an organisation they would wish
to seek and secure additional funding from other organisations. Grow has therefore
requested additional ‘comfort’ in relation to security of tenure. Officers have reviewed the
request and are content to recommend to Committee that we enter into an agreement with
Grow for a further two years in line with the current funding secured from the Rank
Foundation and that we agree to up to a further 3 years subject to review and satisfaction
that the project remains sustainable. It is proposed that the Director be given delegated

authority in this regard.

Members are asked to note that representatives from Grow made a short presentation to
the North Area Working Group. Grow’s Director attended the meeting together with a
number of volunteers who all attested to the personal benefit they had achieved through
the involvement with the Project. At the meeting Grow’s Director sought a lease from the
Council. This matter was subsequently discussed with the Grow’s Chairperson and
another member of the Board following which it was agreed that the Licence to Use
afforded them the necessary security of tenure and also minimised the management and

maintenance liability to the organisation enabling it to focus on the community garden.

At the area working group meeting Grow’s Director also referred to an additional piece of
land adjacent to the Community Garden. This matter was also subsequently discussed
with the Chair and member of the Board. It was agreed that Grow would make further
representation to the Council at a later date regarding the additional land at which time a

variation to the boundary map would be considered.

Financial & Resource Implications

There are no additional financial implications at this time.

Page 28




3.7 Equality or Good Relations Implications
There are no Equality Implications
4.0 Appendices — Documents Attached
4.1 Appendix 1 — Existing Licence to Use Agreement

Appendix 2 — Existing boundary map

Page 29




This page is intentionally left blank



Dated this day of 2016

801-866-4-HK

BELFAST CITY COUNCIL
and

GROW

AGREEMENT

For Delivery of Reaching Out — Connecting Older People Project at Waterworks Park, Belfast.

Legal Services
Belfast City Council
City Hall
BELFAST

BT15GS
04-10-2016

Page 31


http://www.bing.com/images/search?q=belfast+city+council+-+logo&view=detailv2&&id=3EB5199654F82D7E37980273F29F3E7DC27F0B12&selectedIndex=0&ccid=FRL9nUnS&simid=607996619274718902&thid=OIP.M1512fd9d49d2fb124d7c3a070f99c278H0

THIS AGREEMENT is made the day of 2016 between:-

BELFAST CITY COUNCIL of City Hall, Belfast, BT1 5GS (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Council’)
of the one part (which for the purposes of this Agreement shall include its successors and assigns)
and GROW (Registered Charity Number XT20939) whose office is situated at 2\P Floor, 357 Antrim
Road, Belfast, BT15 3BU the trustees of which are Anne Flynn, Chairperson, of Apt 306 Edenderry
Lofts, 326 Crumlin Road, Belfast, BT14 7EA, A Kerr, Treasurer, of 4 Upton Court, Belfast, BT11
8EU, Elis Haughey, Secretary, of 183 Cavehill Road, Belfast, BT15 5BP, Una Duffy, Trustee, of 10
Branville Park, Belfast , BT14 8JZ, Elizabeth Mitchell, Trustee, of 80A Ballyregan Road, Dundonald,
BT16 1TU, Jenna Maghie, Trustee, of 39 Dunraven Avenue, BT5 5JR and Martin Reid, Trustee, of
19 Westland Gardens, Belfast, BT14 BNF, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Licensee’) of the other
part.

BACKGROUND

The Licensee has obtained funding from Big Lottery Fund to deliver a project, ‘Reaching Out —
Connecting Older People’, which is a community gardening project that will take place over three
years across various sites within the City for the benefit of older people and community participants.
The Council has agreed to permit the Licensee temporary and scheduled access to the Waterworks,
Belfast to enable the Licensee to deliver the said project subject to the Big Lottery Fund providing and
continuing to provide the funding for delivery of the project. The Council is empowered to enter into
this Agreement in accordance with its powers and functions under the Recreation and Youth Service
(Northern Ireland) Order 1986.

WHEREBY it is agreed and declared as follows:-

1) The Site, hereinafter more particularly defined is required by the Licensee to facilitate the
delivery of the Reaching Out — Connecting Older People project in a community woodland
learning space by the Licensee in accordance with the terms and conditions herein and the
letter of offer, letter of extension and terms and conditions attached at Appendix 1 hereto which
details the project to be carried out (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Project’).

2) The Council is the owner of lands at the Waterworks Park, Belfast and a portion of the said
lands are shown for the purpose of identification only coloured yellow on the Map attached at
Appendix 2 hereto (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Council’'s Lands’ of which the Site forms
part).

3) The Council hereby licenses and permits, subject as herein, the Licensee, its servants and
agents to include any contractors appointed by the Licensee in connection with the Project to
use the Site, as detailed and defined in the First Schedule, for the purpose of delivering the
Project together with the right for the Licensee, its servants and agents to pass and repass
with or without vehicles and equipment over that part of the land shown shaded yellow on the
Map attached hereto as shall be agreed in advance with the Council’s Director of City and
Neighbourhoods Services or his appointed nominee for the purpose of delivering the Project
for the duration and on the terms hereinafter appearing.

2
Page 32



4) This Agreement shall be deemed to have commenced on the 25 day of April 2012 (hereinafter

referred to as ‘the Commencement Date’) and shall continue from the commencement date
until the 31 day of December 2016 (hereinafter called ‘the Term’) unless earlier determined
subject to a fee of £0.05p (Five Pence) (if demanded) (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Fee’)
and subject as herein.

5) THE LICENSEE HEREBY AGREES AND UNDERTAKES with the Council as follows:-

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

The Licensee shall pay to the Council as an acknowledgement of the agreement and
permission hereby granted the Fee (if demanded) during the Term.

The Licensee shall pay all rates and taxes which may be levied in respect of its use and
occupation of the Site.

The Licensee agrees and undertakes to use the Site solely to facilitate the Project which
involves use for community gardening only (no commercial gain permitted), (in accordance
with the terms and conditions herein and the letter of offer, letter of extension and terms
and conditions attached at Appendix 1) at the Site (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Permitted
User’).

The Licensee shall not use the Site for any purpose whatsoever other than the Permitted
User.

The Licensee shall not make any variation to the Project unless the prior written consent
of the Council has been obtained. The Licensee shall carry out the Project in accordance
with all statutory regulations, orders and legislation relevant to same.

The Licensee shall not commence the Project at the Site until the days and times of use
have been agreed in advance for the Site by the Council’s Director of City and
Neighbourhoods Services or his nominee and written notification has been issued to the
Licensee by the Council in this regard and the Licensee shall only be permitted access
during official park opening times.

The Licensee shall be liable absolutely for all such security arrangements as may be
necessary to secure the Project , the Site and all equipment, plant and materials placed
thereon (including the Learning Space).

The Licensee shall ensure that the Site is locked and secure when not in use and shall
provide the Council with a copy of all keys, and the names, addresses and contact
numbers of all key holder(s) and relevant emergency contact(s).

The Licensee shall obtain at its own expense all necessary planning and other requisite
statutory approvals, permissions, or consent(s) in relation to the Project and the Permitted
User of the Site prior to commencement of the Project and shall be responsible for and
indemnify the Council against all claims, costs, expenses and losses arising in this regard.

3
Page 33



Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

The Licensee shall not do or cause or permit to be done any act or thing in or upon the
Site or the Council’'s Lands or any other neighbouring lands which may be or become a
nuisance inconvenience or danger or cause damage or annoyance to the Council or to the
owner and occupiers of adjoining property and the Licensee shall cease any such
nuisance forthwith upon the instruction of the Council or any of its authorised officers.

The Licensee shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements and the cost of
all such arrangements made in connection with the provision of temporary services to the
Site and their removal on termination of this Agreement.

The Licensee shall not build or permit to be built on the Site any buildings or other
constructions or any extensions to buildings and shall not carry out any major earth works
or changes to the infrastructure without the prior written agreement and approval of the
Council.

The Licensee shall permit the Council its servants, agents, employees and any other
person authorised by the Council at any time to enter into and to inspect the Site for the
purposes of ensuring that the Site is being used for the Permitted User by the Licensee
and ascertaining whether all or any of the provisions of this Agreement are being faithfully
kept observed and performed to include ensuring compliance with the Project.

The Licensee shall be responsible for making all necessary arrangements in connection
with the repair and maintenance of the Site for the Term and shall bear the costs in relation
to same and in respect of the permission hereby granted. To this end the Licensee shall
keep and maintain the Site and the Learning Space in a good and substantial state of
condition and repair and every part thereof in a clean wholesome and tidy condition to the
satisfaction of the Council and free of any offensive or noxious matter or thing and shall
remove all litter therefrom and shall not permit the Site or Council’s Lands to be used for
the depositing of rubbish.

In the event of any termination of this Agreement the Licensee shall immediately remove
and reinstate the Site or part thereof to the satisfaction of the Council within 1 month of the
date of service of Notice by the Council requesting same and if the Licensee does not do
so the Council shall be entitled to undertake such works as may be required to reinstate
the Site or part thereof to the condition that it was in prior to the commencement date of
this Agreement and all expenses which the Council may be put to in carrying out such
works shall be payable by the Licensee to the Council as a debt due on demand.

The Licence shall not place or affix any signage or placards or notices at the Site without
the prior written approval and agreement of the Council.

The Licensee shall be responsible for and shall have all necessary insurances in place
and shall indemnify the Council against all claims for injury or death to any person or
persons or damage to or loss of property (including the Council’s Lands and other property)
however arising in connection with the Project, (o include use of volunteers) the
Licensee’s use of the Site, access routes and the Council’s Lands and also in connection
with any access and works carried out in relation to any defects or latent defects in

4
Page 34



XViil.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

XXii.

accordance with the Permitted User and shall enter into and maintain at all times during
the continuance of this Agreement a policy of Public Liability Insurance for an amount of
not less than £5,000,000 (Five million pounds) for any one incident.

The Licensee shall indemnify the Council its officers, servants and agents from all liability,
claims, costs and expenses in respect of any claim or demands from any person or
persons in respect of any damage, loss, accident, injury, mishap or occurrence of any
description, fatal or otherwise arising out of the Licensee’s use and occupation of the Site
(including use of same by the invitees and volunteers of the Licensee) or arising out of or
in any way connected with the Agreement hereby granted or by reason of anything done
by the Licensee in the exercise or purported exercise of the Agreement and permission
hereby granted and to further indemnify the Council against all proceedings, costs, claims
and demands of whatsoever nature in respect of any such damage, injury or loss suffered
by any person.

The Licensee shall obey all reasonable instructions of the Council or any of its authorised
officers and shall forward any reports or information to the Council in connection with the
delivery of the Project as may be required by the Council.

The Licensee in delivering the Project shall take all necessary steps to ensure that all
Health and Safety requirements are complied with and shall provide evidence of same to
the Council including but not limited to those issued by the Health and Safety Executive
Northern Ireland, and the Licensee shall produce a health and safety statement, risk
assessment and action plan to ensure that all activities undertaken are fully risk assessed
with safe systems of work in place and the Licensee shall make the documents available
to the Council for inspection and review as the Council may require. The Licensee shall
adopt appropriate safe working practices in relation to their employees, volunteers and
members of the public AND the Licence shall agree the access and operating
arrangements, in advance, with the Council’s Director of City and Neighbourhoods
Services or his nominee.

The Licencee shall;

record all accidents and incidents and report same to the Council within 24 hours;
ensure that only qualified persons are permitted to operate machinery and equipment
within the Site;

ensure that no electrical or gas powered cooking equipment is installed or used at
the Site without the prior written approval of the Council and any such installation or
use shall be subject to a health and safety audit and risk assessment by the Council;
ensure that no vehicle(s) is/are permitted access to the Waterworks, the Site or the
Council’s Lands without the prior written approval of the Council.

Upon completion of the Project the Licensee shall forthwith remove all, erections, plant,
equipment or materials from the Site and restore the Site to the condition it was in prior to
the Commencement Date of this Agreement as required by the Council and to the
satisfaction of the. If the Licensee shall neglect or fail to have any plant, equipment or
materials removed or fail to restore the Site or the Council’'s Land to the Councils

5
Page 35



requirements and/or satisfaction, the Council may remove same and restore the Site and
adjoining land and all expenses which the Council may be put to in such removal and
restoration as certified by the Council shall be payable by the Licensee to the Council as
a debt due on demand.

AND IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND DECLARED by and between the parties hereto as follows:-

1. This Agreement is for the exclusive benefit of the Licensee for delivering the Project and the
Licensee shall not be permitted to assign the benefit of this Agreement.

2 In the event of the Licensee being in default under this Agreement either with regard to any
payment reserved hereunder or otherwise or failure to observe and perform any of the
conditions and agreements on its part herein contained, the Council shall be entitled to
immediate repossession of the Site whereupon this Agreement shall forthwith absolutely cease
and determine and the Licensee shall thereupon forthwith vacate the Site removing all things
belonging to the Licensee (but only insofar as this shall be required by the Council) and shall
reinstate the Site to the satisfaction of the Council.

3. Either party may terminate this Agreement by providing one month’s written notice to that effect
to the other party whereupon this Agreement shall cease and determine as provided herein. In
the event that the Big Lottery Fund withholds or ceases funding the Licensee shall inform the
Council within 24 hours and the Council shall be at liberty to terminate this Agreement as it
deems appropriate.

4. On any termination of this Agreement the Licensee shall not require nor shall the Council be
under any obligation to make or pay compensation to the Licensee in respect of any disturbance
or loss occasioned to the Licensee for any reason.

5.  The Council shall not be responsible to the Licensee or the Licensee’s servants, agents or
invitees or other persons on the Site making a claim against the Licensee for any accident
happening or injury suffered or damage to or loss of any chattel or property sustained on the
Site and/or the Council’s Lands.

6. The Licensee is and remains the body responsible to the Council in accordance with the terms
of the Agreement.

7.  The Council does not give any undertaking or warranty that the Site is suitable for the purposes
of the Licensee’s use thereof.

8. During the Term the Council acting reasonably reserves the right to require the Licensee to
relocate the position of any of the Project to such other part of the Site as may be required by
the Council.

9.  Any notice requiring to be given or served hereunder shall be sufficiently served in the case of
the Licensee if sent by recorded delivery post to the office of the Licensee and in the case of
the Council if sent by recorded delivery post and addressed to the Chief Executive at the
address shown at the head of this Agreement.

6
Page 36



10. This Agreement shall be applied and construed in accordance with the laws of Northern Ireland
and the parties hereto submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of Northern Ireland.

7
Page 37



FIRST SCHEDULE

‘The Site’
The Site means the land shown edged red on the Map attached hereto at Appendix 2 which said

lands are situate within the Waterworks Park, Belfast, and includes two containers owned by the
Council which have been installed at the said lands.

8
Page 38



IN WITNESS whereof the Council has affixed its Corporate Seal and the Licensee has executed in
the manner hereinafter appearing the day and year first herein WRITTEN.

PRESENT When the Corporate Seal of
BELFAST CITY COUNCIL
was affixed hereto :-

Lord Mayor

Chief Executive

S N N N N N N N N S N N S N

SIGNED AND DELIVERED by

ANNE FLYNN, A KERR,

ELIS HAUGHEY, UNA DUFFY,
ELIZABETH MITCHELL, JENNA MAGHIE
and MARTIN REID

in the presence of:-

~— e — O - — = N Y o

9
Page 39



APPENDIX 1

1. Letter of Offer dated 25" April 2012.
2. Letter of Extension dated ........................
3. Reaching Out — Standard Terms and Conditions.

10
Page 40



APPENDIX 2

MAP

Portion of Waterworks and the Site

11
Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Based on the Ordnance Survey of
Northern Ireland map with the permission
of the Director & Chief Executive.

© Crown Copyright.

Scale 1:500

MAP REFERRED TO

BELFAST CITY COUNCIL and TRUSTEES OF GROW

LICENCE AT THEI5VATER RKS, BELFAST
age \2(%

Estates Management Unit,
Belfast City Council,
. Property & Projects Dept.,
Produced by: Adelaide Exchange,

24-26 Adelaide Street,
ss

Belfast BT2 8GD.
Date:- 26/01/2015

Area 0.305 acres




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3d

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: BMX Race Track
Date: 8t November 2016
Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department
Rose Crozier, Assistant Director City &Neighbourhood Services
Contact Officer: Department
Cormac McCann, Leisure Development Manager

Is this report restricted? Yes No X
Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No
1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 Belfast City BMX club have submitted a request (appendix 1) seeking Council’s support
to locate, develop and operate a national standard competition and training BMX track in
Belfast. They further seek written confirmation of Council’s support in seeking third party

funding applications.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to agree;
e To support Belfast City BMX Club in its application for third party funding for

development of a national standard competition and training BMX track in Belfast.

e That officers are permitted to support Belfast City BMX Club in identifying an
appropriate location; producing a development proposal; developing the track;

producing a sustainable operational and management plan.

3.0 Main report

Key Issues
3.1 BMX is recognised as the best development activity in grassroots cycling, offering cyclists

the opportunity to develop skills, fitness and friendships in a controlled off-road

environment. There are no competition standard BMX tracks in Belfast.

Page 45



3.2

Active BMX clubs offer lessons for beginners, skills sessions for more advanced riders
and race meetings for the most experienced. Competition standard BMX tracks have been
shown to offer good value with high levels of recreational and structured use in cities
across the UK and Ireland. Examples include Glasgow, Peckham, Southwark, Ratoath

and Lucan, the most recent successful investment is in Lisburn.

3.3 Recent investment in the Mountain Bike Trails and BMX Jump Park at Sir Thomas and
Lady Dixon Park have proven to generate high levels of participation among a diverse
range of users as well as providing positive publicity for the city as a cycling destination.
The addition of a competition standard facility will continue to increase accessibility to off-
road cycling development opportunities.

3.4 It is recognised that the proposal is at a conceptual stage and will be brought back to
committee when further developed.

Financial & Resource Implications

3.5 No Financial implications at this stage.
Asset and Other Implications

3.6 No implications at this stage.

Equality or Good Relations Implications

3.7 None.

4.0 Appendices — Documents Attached

4.1 Appendix 1 — BMX Letter

Page 46




BELFAST CITY BMX CLUB

Chairman: Paul Manton
Treasurer: lan Hamilton
Secretary: Eddie Allan

Email: BelfastCityBmxClub@gmail.com
Tel: 07503139954

2 .
bmxireland

18" October 2016

Dear Rose,

RE: Bringing BMX Racing to Belfast

Thank you for meeting with us on Tuesday 11™ October 2016. It was great to be given the opportunity to show you our aspirations for BMX racing in
Belfast, and demonstrate the ongoing development of our club.

As discussed at the meeting we would like to formally request Belfast City Council's assistance in the development of a national standard BMX race
facility within the greater Belfast area, specifically with:

e  Your support to locate and develop a suitable site for a national BMX race (& training) facility, and develop a partnership with the Club to run
such facility.
e Your collaboration in sourcing third party funding streams, and written confirmation that BCC will support us in applications of such.

We are very excited about the possibility of growing the sport, as we firmly believe that it's time to invest in the grassroots cycling of BMX.

We are confident that a national standard BMX facility will benefit the local community, local schools, youth groups, and kids with learning difficulties.
We will bring “come and try” events, club racing, club coaching, national (all Ireland) racing, and even international events should the facility be suitable.
With this brings visitors to the city, and a boost to the local economy.

Belfast City BMX Club believe we can grow exponentially with the right facility, and equipment to promote the sport.

We look forward to working with BCC in the development of our vision and bring a national standard BMX track to Belfast.
Yours sincerely,
Paul Manton

Chairman

BelfastCityBmxClub@gmail.com

] < 2% Page47
cyclingulster bmx|re and cycllnglreland


mailto:BelfastCityBmxClub@gmail.com
mailto:BelfastCityBmxClub@gmail.com

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4a

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subiject: Parks Events Small Grants Scheme — Recommendations for Funding
Date: 8 November 2016

Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department
Contact Officer: Agnes McNulty, Open Spaces & Active Living Manager

Is this report restricted? Yes No X
Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 The purpose of the report is to inform Members of the decision taken by the Director of

Development, under delegated authority, regarding the applications received in Tranche 2

for events taking place in parks between 1 October 2016 and 31 March 2017.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to;

¢ Note the contents of the report.

3.0 Main report

Key Issues
3.1 A total of 16 applications were received for the Grant which were assessed by the Open

Spaces & Active Living Unit (OS&AL) and 8 applications met the criteria for an award to be

made, as shown in Appendix 1.

3.2 An Independent Assessment Panel reviewed a sample (20%) of the applications, was
satisfied with the scoring and application of the criteria for the grants and approved the
recommendations for awards. The Central Grants Unit (CGU) will continue the

administration of the grant through notification to unsuccessful applicants, draft and

distribution of Letters of Offer, holding workshops for grant awarded applicants, facilitation

Page 49



of payments and monitoring of all awards, including financial verification visits.

Financial & Resource Implications

3.3 Tranche 1 - £76,610.28. Tranche 2 - £21,511. The total budget for 2016/17 is £115,000.
The scheme is managed by staff from the OS&AL Unit and the Community Park
Managers/Outreach Officers are responsible for liaising with groups.

Equality or Good Relations Implications

3.4 There are no known equality and good relation implications.

4.0 Appendices — Documents Attached

4.1 Appendix 1: Parks Events Small Grants Applications, 2016/17 - T2.

Page 50




LG 8bed

Appendix 1: Parks Events Grant Applications 2016/17, T2

Ref {Organisation Project Title Requested |Recommended
7641 {The Conservation Volunteers Big Green Weekend 2016 £3,350.00 £2,650.00
7761 {Féile An Phobail Draocht Children's Festival 2016 {£3,000.00 £2,700.00
7772 {New Lodge Arts North Belfast Lantern Parade & {£3,000.00 £3,000.00
Magical Festival
7779 {Compassion Belfast Inside a Snow Globe £3,000.00 £3,000.00
7511 {Taughmonagh Commuity Forum Ltd | St Patrick's Day Family Fun Day {£2,846.00 £2,282.00
in the Park
7792 {Greater Village Regeneration Trust Walking in a Village Winter £3,000.00 £3,000.00
Wonderland
7332 {Cairde Bhunscoil Bheann Mhadagain North Belfast Gaels Celebration {£2,924.00 £2,314.00
of Cliftonville 3G Pitch Opening
4607 {North Belfast Partnership Hallowe'en at Glenbank Park £2,965.00 £2,565.00
Unsuccessful Applications
Ref :Organisation Project Title Requested :Recommended :Reason
7136 iSPRED SPRED Around the Park 2016 £3,296.00 £0.00 Did not reach pass mark
7414 :Dean Clarke Foundation Spooky Special £1,690.00 £0.00 Did not meet 3 of the 4
essential criteria
7693 iEdenderry Residents' Association Hallowe'en Children's Event £1,460.00 £0.00 Did not meet 3 of the 4
essential criteria
7758 iBallynafeigh Community Development iBCDA Environmental Education {£1,550.00 £0.00 Did not meet 3 of the 4
Association Project essential criteria
7916 iInner East Youth Project The Darkness Within £2,950.00 £0.00 Did not meet 3 of the 4
essential criteria
7650 iUpper Springfield Resource Centre Community Corridor Opening of i£2,000.00 £0.00 Awarded £2,079in T1,
New Play Park minimum award is £1k
7842 iHoly Family Youth Centre Winter Wonderland £2,676.00 £0.00 Awarded £2,840 in T1,
minimum award is £1k
7539 :South Belfast Sure Start South Belfast Sure Start Family :£2,485.00 £0.00 Event date provided is

Fun Day

outside the eligible
funding period.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5a

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: Anti-Social Behaviour (Citywide and Holylands)
Date: 8 November 2016
Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department
Siobhan Toland, Assistant Director, City & Neighbourhood Services
Contact Officer:
Department
Is this report restricted? Yes No X
Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of Main Issues

1.1 Further to the Notice of Motion referred to Committee in October 2016 (as detailed below) and
increasing Member concern around antisocial behaviour in a range of parks and open spaces

across the city, the purpose of this report is to update Members on:

- The anti-social behaviour context in the Holy Land and around parks and open spaces
across the city;
- The ongoing work in response to these issues;

- The planned work to improve the response to these issues;

Notice of Motion

1.2 “This Council recognises the substantial social and economic contribution which students and
universities make to our City. We also condemn, without reservation, the disorder seen on the
streets of Belfast and express our support for the affected residents. The Council resolves to
consider a report in the relevant Committee specifically addressing the return of wardens, the
installation of CCTV, the impact of private landlords and options for more rigorously enforcing
bye-laws. The Council also agrees that Chief Officers will attend the Inter-Agency Group in

recognition of the seriousness of the problem”.

Page 53




2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to;
e Consider the contents of the report.

¢ Note the progress to date and endorse the future work planned to address these issues
more effectively.

3.0

Main report

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Anti-Social Behaviour Context

The Holyland
Members will be aware that for a number of years, the Holyland area of South Belfast has

experienced significant issues with ongoing anti-social and nuisance behaviour, particularly at key
dates e.g. St. Patrick’s Day, Halloween and the Fresher’s Period. The main issues being on street
drinking and noise. There have also been occasions when street disorder has taken place due

to the large numbers of people in the area and the influence of large quantities of alcohol.

Groups in the area representing the interests of long term residents and newly settled families
continue to report that these behaviours have significant impacts on their quality of life, particularly

as the issues have been ongoing for a number of years.

The issues are associated in the main (although not exclusively) with the large student population

in the area. There is also recognition that not all students are involved in the negative behaviours.

At a recent public meeting of the Wider University Area PACT (Partners and Communities
Together) to review the Fresher’s period 2016, significant concern was articulated from long term
residents and newly settled families that agencies and the Higher Education Institutions (HEI's)
were not effective in their efforts to minimise the impact of these issues on the community in the

area.

For Members’ information a summary of the resources provided and actions taken by Council,
PSNI and the HEI's during Fresher’s 2016 is included at Appendix 1.

Parks and Open Spaces

For several years there has also been an Elected Member and public concern regarding anti

social behaviour in local neighbourhoods. In recent months, Elected Member concern and the

Page 54




number of customer complaints has grown, in respect of crime and anti-social behaviour in a

number of parks and open spaces across the city.

An additional concern in respect of parks and open spaces is the growth of a large group of young
people who are transient in nature (anything from 50 — 150 young people at a time), who move
across parks and open spaces in the city. This group can be under the influence of alcohol and
drugs and are often determined to remain detached from existing structured youth provision in

their own communities.

Currently the main parks and open spaces most affected at present are:

Park/Open Space Main Issues At Present Frequency

Girdwood Criminal damage, inappropriate use of Unpredictable, can
scramblers, abuse of staff/residents, rowdy | happen any night of

and nuisance behaviour. the week.

Marrowbone Criminal damage/vandalism, trespass,
drinking, lighting fires, drug use, rowdy and

nuisance behaviour.

Falls Park/City Criminal damage/vandalism, lighting fires,
Cemetery burnt out vehicles, inappropriate vehicle
use, drinking, drug use, rowdy and nuisance

behaviour.

Lagan Walkway Vulnerability of young people under .
_ _ Weekends mainly
influence of alcohol and possibly drugs and .
o and school holidays
proximity to water.

Cavehill Country Criminal damage, graffiti, drinking,
Park inappropriate use of scramblers, rowdy and

nuisance behaviour.

Dunville Drinking, rowdy and nuisance behaviour,

inappropriate use of scramblers.

Whiterock Possible damage to new playground facility

and proximity to Falls Park/City Cemetery.

The ongoing work in response to these issues

The Holyland
Members will be aware that agencies (including the HEI's) have been working in partnership with

Page 55




3.10

the community to address issues in the Holyland area for a number of years. This work has

included:

- Holylands Strategic Study to better understand the challenge and make recommendations
on proposed ways forward;

- Learning City Inter-Agency Group (previously Holyland Inter-Agency Group) to ensure
strategic focus was given to issues in the area (including delivery of Learning City Action
Plan);

- Student Housing Strategy to support the City to meet the demand for Purpose Built
Managed Student Accommodation;

- Joint PSNI, Council and University operations every St. Patricks, Halloween and Fresher’s
period;

- Wider University Area PACT (including delivery of the Wider University Area PACT Action
Plan;

- Financial support for community led family friendly, community safety and environmental
improvement projects;

- HEI development of student disciplinary policy to better manage student behaviours

- City Wide Community Safety Warden Service 2009 — 2013;

- Pilot Holy Land redeployable CCTV Provision 2010 — 2016, partner funded.

Parks and Open Spaces

Further to reports considered by Committee in May/June 2015 collaborative work between Parks,
Community Safety and (D)(PCSP (Policing and Community Safety Partnership) teams has been
ongoing. Additionally, with those teams now being within the City and Neighbourhood Services
Department the effectiveness of a ‘One Council’ response to crime and anti-social behaviour is

improving. Ongoing work includes:

- Joint planning and ongoing ‘one Council’ front line responses to community safety issues
in all parks and open spaces detailed above;

- Fortnightly operational planning meetings to monitor ongoing concerns and develop
responses;

- Joint visible reassurance patrols of Council Officers and when required PSNI;

- Proactive visits to off licenses around parks and open spaces to give advice and guidance
on consequences of selling alcohol to minors;

- Ongoing delivery of programming to support positive and legitimate use of the parks and
open spaces;

- Delivery of positive diversionary activities in partnership with (D)PCSP’s;

Page 56




3.11

3.12

3.13

- Partnerships developed with local youth providers and (D)PCSP supported detached
youth work to address anti-social behaviour in priority parks and open spaces;

- Council and (D)PCSP investment in community infrastructure around parks and open
spaces to encourage participation and sustainability;

- Ongoing delivery of proactive work on social media and through schools to promote
parental responsibility as well as reinforcing the expectation that young people using the
parks will do so in a positive manner;

- Joint procurement and deployment of mobile/redeployable CCTV solutions;

- Single point of reporting crime and anti-social behaviour issues on a daily basis to

improve our understanding of the issues.

The planned work to improve the response to these issues

It is recognised that significant effort has gone in to developing the ‘one Council’ and partnership
approach to addressing crime and anti-social behaviour across the city (including the Holy Land
and parks/open spaces across), however, challenges remain in improving the effectiveness of our
efforts to address these issues. The remaining challenges have informed the focus of our work

going forward. They are:

Operational Demand v Availability of Resource

It is recognised there is significant demand from across the city for Council to provide a front line
and operational response to address anti-social behaviour. Members will be aware however, that

the available citywide Council front line resource currently stands at:

- 8 Safer Neighbourhood Officers (SNO’s) whose main focus is working at community level
to address community safety issues. The working patterns of SNO’s is Mon — Thurs 2pm
—10pm (8 SNQO’s), Fri/Sat 4.30pm — Midnight (4 SNO’s)

- 24 Park Wardens with part focus of job on addressing community safety issues within
parks. Park Wardens work a shift pattern providing cover throughout the day from morning
to park closing. For the autumn/winter period this means that Park Wardens are not
available from within their normal shift pattern for evening work.

- Up to 10 casual Alcohol Enforcement Officers (AEO’s) who can be deployed to support
SNO’s and Park Wardens at key dates and events, but this carries an additional financial

cost.

Operational demand for front line Council resource exceeds the core available resource at present
(Park Wardens and SNO’s). Evidence of need (both recorded incidents and anecdotal input from

Elected Members and communities) has informed the areas of focus at present but this may

Page 57




3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

change in the future.

Future Work Planned

- Explore the short term opportunities for flexible working between SNO’s and Park
Wardens to meet the citywide demand at evenings and weekends.

- In the context of the City and Neighbourhood Services Department change programme,
explore the possible benefits of a more integrated ‘one Council’ approach to warden type
services to maximise availability and effectiveness of the resource

CCTV

CCTV can be a useful tool; however, as a standalone resource it is not effective in dealing with

and addressing crime and anti-social behaviour.

Members will recall the decision of Belfast City Council in February 2016 to close the pilot
redeployable CCTV system operating in the Holylands and to support the impact with
mobile/redeployable CCTV when required.

This decision was based on the following:

- None of the funders or partners of the original scheme currently have any financial
resource to contribute toward the urgent upgrade needed to ensure the Holylands CCTV
system operates at an acceptable level.

- PSNI who had taken responsibility for recording and monitoring of cameras are no longer
able to do so at the original level and are only prepared to commit to recording capacity
for five strategically placed cameras. Live monitoring of these cameras would only take
place over key dates throughout the year e.g. St. Patrick’s Day, Fresher’s and Halloween.

- CCTV is not considered a current priority for them

- There is a reluctance from partners to consider re-investment in a system which has not
provided tangible evidence of impact over the years.

- CCTV as a standalone resource is considered not effective in dealing with anti-social
behaviour in the Holylands area.

- There is a view that a shared multi-agency responsibility and partnership working is the
most effective way of addressing issues in the Holylands area.

- Future investment would need to show strong evidence of impact.

The current position remains that no partner funding is available at present to contribute to fixed
CCTV systems either in the Holy Land or elsewhere in the city for the purposes of preventing
crime and anti-social behaviour and that PSNI are not in a position to monitor any additional CCTV

cameras.

Page 58




3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

Mobile/Redeployable CCTV and Body Worn Cameras are now available for use by Council, and

PSNI can deploy Evidence Gathering Teams (EGT) when the evidence of need is established.

Future Work Planned

Continued provision of Council procured mobile/redeployable CCTV solutions and where
appropriate and available the PSNI Evidence Gathering Teams (EGT) in hot spot areas
and at high risk times

Continued use of Body Worn Cameras for Council Officers in hot spot areas at high risk

times

Council Role v PSNI Role

Partnership working between Council and PSNI in providing front line services to tackle crime

and anti-social behaviour is intrinsic to how both organisations work. Joint Council and PSNI

operations have taken place in the Holy Land, at large events and at hot spots in communities

for a number of years.

However, core to this joint working is clarity on the individual roles and responsibilities of each

organisation. For example:

Council Officers will work to address low level noise, nuisance or anti-social behaviour
where it is safe to do so and within their existing working patterns. Additionally, Council
Officers do not have any supplementary powers should an individual be obstructive.
PSNI Officers will work to address more serious nuisance or anti-social behaviour,

criminality and street disorder and are a 24/7 resource.

Core to the clarity of roles and responsibilities is that Council Officers have a very specific remit

to deal with low level and minor issues. Council Officers are not recruited for or trained to deal

with more serious nuisance, anti-social behaviour, criminality or street disorder.

The Way Forward

Guidance to be provided to Elected Members and Communities on roles and
responsibilities of Council and PSNI

More joint operational planning between Council and PSNI to reduce duplication of and
maximise efforts

Further exploration of how to maximise the Council roles in supporting this work as part

of the City and Neighbourhoods Department Change Programme

Page 59




3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

Role of Education Authority and other Youth Providers

Crime and anti-social behaviour in parks and open spaces can often be driven by alcohol and
drug use among young people. The young people in question are often transient in nature and
move in large groups between parks and open spaces and are largely detached from more

structured youth provision.

Most youth providers (including the Education Authority) will not work directly with a young person
under the influence of alcohol or drugs and this presents a challenge in respect of meaningful
engagement with this group with a view to meeting their needs and changing their negative

behaviours.

Future Work Planned

- A review of the specific needs of this group of young people (detached, transient and
sometimes under the influence of alcohol/drugs) is being undertaken by Belfast Policing
and Community Safety Partnership (PCSP).

- The Education Authority is in the process of establishing Local Advisory Groups (LAG’s)
to inform the future of youth provision in the city. Council Officers will participate in these
groups with a view to influencing the Education Authority to improve how they meet the
needs of this specific group of young people as well as the needs of young people

generally.

Legislative Review

Further to Council’'s consideration of a Notice of Motion expressing concern about the
effectiveness of legislation and bye-laws designed to tackle on street drinking, Council requested
that the Department of Justice and Department for Communities commence a review of the
effectiveness of the existing legal framework. This review should also consider additional powers
which could complement or enhance those currently available in Northern Ireland. That review is

underway with the proactive support of Council Officers.

Future Work Planned

- Ongoing delivery of the review of the effectiveness of existing legislation and bye-laws and
report back to Committee on recommendations
- Meantime exploration of how far the parameters of existing legislation and bye-laws can

be used to alleviate the issue

Page 60




4.0

Appendices — Documents Attached

4.1

Previous Relevant Decisions

Review of Community Safety Wardens —http://gsintmin01:9077/mgAi.aspx?ID=14516

Holy Land CCTV System —http://gsintmin01:9077/mgAi.aspx?1D=27963

On Street Drinking - http://gsintmin01:9077/mgAi.aspx?ID=30453

Page 61



http://gsintmin01:9077/mgAi.aspx?ID=14516
http://gsintmin01:9077/mgAi.aspx?ID=27963

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5b

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: Pride of Place Gala Event 2016
Date: 8 November 2016
Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department

Cate Taggart, Community Development Manager

Contact Officer: Clare Mullen, Community Services Unit Manager

Is this report restricted? Yes No X
Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Members about the arrangements for

the Pride of Place Gala event being held in the Waterfront Hall on Saturday 26" November
2016 which Members approved to host in April 2016.

2.0 Recommendations

21 The Committee is asked to:
¢ Note the update provided in relation to the Pride of Place Awards ceremony

¢ Note receipt of invite to the event.

3.0 Main report

Key Issues
Summary of main issues

3.1 The Pride of Place competition has been supported by the Council for a number of years
with Community Service officers taking the organisational lead in the selection and

preparation of entrant groups.

3.2 Pride of Place is an awards programme which recognises and celebrates the vital

Page 63



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

contributions that community partnerships make to society. The focus is on people coming
together to shape, change and enjoy all that is good about their local area. It differs from
other similar projects in that they specifically recognise the involvement of the local
community in all aspects of rural and urban regeneration including promoting social
cohesion, involvement in planning, the promotion of heritage and environmental

awareness.

There are a number of categories based on population size: ranging from areas of
population up to 200, to areas of population over 2000. There are also single issue
categories which will change to reflect the current environment. This year’s city categories
include:

= Age Friendly Initiative

=  Community Arts

=  Community Enterprise

The Council has consistently entered a number of groups each year from across the city
and in different categories. This year’s approved nominations are:

= East Belfast Development Agency

= Glor na Mona

= Greater Whitewell Community Surgery

= The Play Resource Warehouse

Each year the Gala Awards event is hosted by one of the Local Authorities and this year

the steering group requested Belfast City Council to host the Awards event for 2016.

Pride of Place Gala Event

The Council was approached by Co-operation Ireland to seek interest in hosting the Pride

of Place Gala event for 2016. Council agreed to host the event in April 2016.

The intention is to attract between 800-900 people from Local Authorities all over Ireland
to the City for the event which will take place on Saturday 26" November 2016 at the
Waterfront Hall.

The hosting of the event provides Belfast with a unique opportunity to promote the
business tourism aspect of the city with civic dignitaries from across Ireland. It will also

provide economic benefits to local hotels, restaurants and visitor attractions: historically

Page 64




3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

those attending the ceremony would stay in the hosting city over the entire weekend.

The organisation of this year’s event has been taken forward by an internal working group
led by Community Services and the Chief Executive’s office, supported by Co-operation
Ireland. The group have been working over the past number of months to put in place the
arrangements for hosting the IPB awards and have succeeded in attracting sponsorship
from the Department for Communities, Public Health Agency and the Harbour

Commission.

Invitations have been extended to the OFMDFM and the Ministers of the sponsoring

bodies and officers are awaiting confirmation from their respective offices.

Ticket sales have exceeded expectations. There has been huge interest from councils
and their communities both North and South to attend the event. The number of additional
ticket sales has exceeded the original target of 350 with 462 being sold to date. Officers
are anticipating an audience of 1,000 which will make this year’s event one of the largest

ever.

Members will have already received their invitation to the event and confirmations should
be made to the Chief Executive’s office. The evening will include a drinks reception from
6pm and the entertainment offered will provide a show case for local talent including
Streetwise Community Circus, Belfast School of Music Youth Orchestra, Belfast Gospel

Choir and the James Peak experience.

Financial & Resource Implications

Costs are within income received alongside the revenue budget agreed by Committee in
April 2016.

Equality & Good Relations Implications

There are no equality or Good Relations implications to this report.

4.0

Appendices — documents attached

41

None

Page 65




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5c¢

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: Management & Control of Japanese Knotweed

Date: 8t November 2016

Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department
] Siobhan Toland, Assistant Director City & Neighbourhood Services

Contact Officer: Department.

Is this report restricted? Yes I:I No X

Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No I:I

1.0 Purpose of report or summary of main Issues

1.1 Members will be aware that the Council receives environmental inquiries and complaints
regarding the presence of Japanese knotweed on residential and commercial sites and
regarding the spread of Japanese knotweed onto properties from vacant lands. Inquiries
can also arise as part of the Planning process whenever sites are being redeveloped or

when construction is occurring.

1.2 Concerns regarding the spread of Japanese knotweed across the UK have been recently
highlighted by the national media, both on television and in print. At a local level, the issue
of Japanese knotweed has been considered by the Northern Ireland Assembly and its
Environment Committee. A few prominent cases involving residential properties have been

identified within the Council area.

1.3 In order to identify opportunities for the more effective control of Japanese knotweed,
council officers from the City and Neighbourhood Services Department and Legal Services
have held a preliminary meeting with representatives of the Northern Ireland Environment
Agency (NIEA). This report serves to update Members on the outcome of that meeting and
regarding the actions that are proposed to be taken jointly by the Council and NIEA to
heighten awareness of Japanese knotweed within Belfast, thereby leading to the timely

and more effective control of this non-native invasive species.

Page 67



1.4

Members will be aware that an Assembly Motion has recently been tabled calling on the
Minister of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs to bring forward proposals for a

regional programme to eradicate Japanese knotweed.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee is asked to;
e Note the contents of this report and to agree that Council officers continue to
engage with the NIEA regarding the development of a Japanese knotweed publicity
article for inclusion in City Matters, to be augmented by supporting information on

the Council’s website.

3.0

Main issues

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Context.

Japanese knotweed (Fallopia japonica) is a highly invasive non-native species that was
introduced into the UK in the mid-nineteenth century but has since spread to virtually all
parts of the UK. It is spread solely via the movement of soil material infected with
fragments of the rhizome (root) or plant material and although Japanese knotweed does
flower, only the female plants are known to occur in Northern Ireland. Hybrids of the plant

do occasionally occur but these generally do not survive.

Japanese knotweed is prescribed within the Wildlife (Northern Ireland) Order 1985 as a
non-native invasive plant species. As such, it is an offence to plant or otherwise cause
Japanese knotweed to grow in the wild. The enforcing authority is the Department of
Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs (DAERA) Northern Ireland Environment Agency
(NIEA). Although Japanese knotweed can cause structural damage to property, thereby
potentially leading to reductions in land values and difficulties in obtaining mortgages, it is

not injurious to human health.

Invasive species are considered to be a threat to our native biodiversity as they crowd out
native species and as such, they can cause damage to forestry, agriculture and

infrastructure sectors.

Japanese knotweed is typically dealt with either by deep excavation and deep burial or via
the sustained application of a Glyphosate based herbicide. Japanese knotweed is however
difficult to successfully eradicate and so herbicide treatments need to be continued until no

regrowth is observed which can typically take between 4 and 5 years.

Page 68




3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Legislative controls.

Where Japanese knotweed is located on private land, NIEA has indicated that any decision
to control the plant lies with the landowner. Whilst it is not an offence to have an
established Japanese knotweed stand growing on a property, an offence would be
committed if it was knowingly removed from the site thereby leading to its further spread.
Where Japanese knotweed has spread from one property to another, NIEA has advised

that this is a civil matter between both landowners.

In GB, similar legislative controls to those available in Northern Ireland exist to prevent the
spread of Japanese knotweed via the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. In addition,
Section 14(4A) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act, as inserted by section 23 of the
Infrastructure Act 2015, enables species control agreements and orders to be made by
environmental authorities to ensure that landowners take action on invasive non-native
species, or permit others to enter the land and carry out those operations, to prevent their

establishment and spread.

The Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) has advised however that
these provisions should be used primarily to support national eradication programmes,
typically used to remove newly arrived invasive non-native species or those of relatively
restricted distribution, adding that it would not be an appropriate use of these powers or an
effective use of resources to seek to apply these orders to invasive non-native species that

have become widespread such as Japanese knotweed.

Officer meeting with NIEA and proposed actions.

During the recent officer meeting with NIEA, it was highlighted that there is likely to be a
significant benefit to landowners in the prompt identification and treatment of Japanese
knotweed, thereby preventing the plant from becoming established. Accordingly, it is
proposed that the Council will join with the NIEA in order to develop a Japanese knotweed
information article for inclusion in the spring 2017 edition of City Matters, prior to the 2017
growing season commencing. This article will be augmented by additional technical
information, available via the Council’s website. In addition, it is proposed that staff from
the City and Neighbourhood Services and Property and Projects Departments will review
procedures for dealing with Japanese knotweed on Council owned lands. Finally, it is
proposed that Council officers will continue to liaise with NIEA regarding further

opportunities for the more effective control of Japanese knotweed.

Page 69




Financial & Resource Implications.

3.9 There will be a requirement for officers to periodically liaise with NIEA regarding
development of the Japanese knotweed information article and supporting website
information. Staff costs and the cost of production of the information article for City Matters
are included within existing revenue estimates.

Equality & Good Relations Implications.

3.10 | There are no relevant equality considerations associated with the proposed Japanese
knotweed information article and supporting website inclusions.

4.0 Appendices — documents attached

4.1 None.

Page 70




Agenda ltem 5d

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subiject: Proposal for a Dual Language Street Sign

Date: 8t November, 2016

Reporting Officer: lan Harper, Building Control Manager

Contact Officer: Roisin Adams, Business Coordinator

Is this report restricted? Yes No X

Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of report or summary of main issues

1.1 To consider an application for the erection of dual language street signs for existing streets
within the City.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 As at least two thirds of the total numbers of persons surveyed in the streets are in favour
of the proposal to erect a second street nameplate in Irish at Kilmore Close and Kilmore

Square the Committee is recommended to approve the applications.

3.0 Main report

Key Issues
3.1 The power for the Council to consider applications to erect a second street nameplate in a

language other than English is contained in Article 11 of the Local Government

(Miscellaneous Provisions) (NI) Order 1995.

3.2 Members are asked to consider the following applications to erect a second street
nameplate showing the name of the streets expressed in a language other than English.

The second language is Irish.

Page 71



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

English Name | Non- English | Location Applicant Persons
Name surveyed
Kilmore Cearnég na | Off Clonard Clonard Neighbourhood | 44
Square Cille Street, BT13 | Development
Partnership
Kilmore Close Clés na Cille | Off Clonard Clonard Neighbourhood | 71
Moire Street, BT13 | Development
Partnership

The translations were authenticated by Queens University, the approved translator for

Belfast City Council.

In accordance with the Council’s policy for the erection of dual language street signs
surveys of all persons appearing on the Electoral Register for the above streets were
carried out and the following responses were received.

Kilmore Square, BT13

31 people (70%) are in favour of the erection of a second street nameplate

13 people (30%) did not respond to the survey

Kilmore Close, BT13

49 people (69%) are in favour of the erection of a second street nameplate

22 people (31%) did not respond to the survey
The Council’s policy on the erection of a second street nameplate requires that at least two
thirds (66.6%) of the people surveyed must be in favour of the proposal to erect a second

street sign in a language other than English.

Financial & Resource Implications

There is a cost of approximately £250 covering the cost of the manufacturing and erection
of the dual language street signs. The cost for these street signs has been allowed for in

the current budget.

Equality & Good Relations Implications

There are no direct Equality implications.

Page 72




4.0

Appendices — documents attached

4.1

None

Page 73




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5e

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: Request for The Use of Ormeau Park
Date: 8t November 2016
Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department

Rose Crozier, Assistant Director City & Neighbourhood Services
Contact Officer: Department

Brian McKinley, Events Officer

Is this report restricted? Yes No X

Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 The Committee is asked to note that the Council has received a request from Cancer

Research UK for the use of Ormeau Park

1.2 Cancer Research UK proposes to hold a Race For Life “Pretty Muddy” event at Ormeau
Park on Saturday 2 September 2017 from 10 am. They will require access to the park on
Friday 1 September, 9 am for the set-up and will be on site on Saturday 2 September until
10 pm to dismantle the event. The event will require the closure of all or a substantial

proportion of the facility.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to;

¢ Approve the Cancer Research UK event at Ormeau Park on Saturday 2 September
2017 subject to the completion of the appropriate Event Management Plans and
satisfactory terms being agreed by the Director of City & Neighbourhood Services
and on the condition that:

= The Event Organisers resolve all operational issues to the Council's

Page 75



satisfaction.

= An appropriate legal agreement is prepared by the Town Solicitor.

= The Event Organisers meet all statutory requirements including Public
Liability Insurance cover, Health and Safety, and licensing responsibilities.

= The timely payment of the agreed charges and bonds as required in the legal
agreements.

= The Event Organisers shall consult with adjoining public bodies and local

communities as necessary.

3.0 Main report
3.1 Key Issues
= Cancer Research UK proposes to hold a Race For Life “Pretty Muddy” event at Ormeau
Park on Saturday 2 September 2017 from 10 am.
= Pretty Muddy is a 5k women only entry-level obstacle course. The event first came to
Ormeau Park, Belfast in 2015 and attracted over 3000 ladies, helping Cancer Research
UK to raise over £170 000, to help fund research into 200 different types of cancer.
= A participation fee of approximately £15 will be charged to cover the event organisation.
The event will not be profit making.
= The Event Organisers will be required to submit an Event Management Plan to the
Council prior to their event, in a timely manner and undertake the appropriate
notifications, as necessary.
3.2 Financial & Resource Implications
The event will not impact on any bookable facilities therefore no loss of revenue is expected.
3.3 Asset & Other Implications
A Reinstatement Bond of £5,000 will be required for the event.
3.4 Equality & Good Relations Implications
There are no known implications.
4.0 Appendices — Documents Attached
4.1 None

Page 76




Agenda ltem 5f

Belfast PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES COMMITTEE

City Council

Subject: World 24 hour Running Championship 2017
Date: 8t November 2016
Reporting Officer: Nigel Grimshaw, Director City & Neighbourhood Services Department

Rose Crozier, Assistant Director City & Neighbourhood Services
Contact Officer: Department

Cormac McCann, Leisure Development Manager

Is this report restricted? Yes No X
Is the decision eligible for Call-in? Yes | X | No

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues

1.1 To advise Committee of operational requirements with the delivery of the World 24hour

Running Championships in Victoria Park in July 2017.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to;
e Support limited access to some areas of Victoria Park for the safe and successful

management of this International event.

3.0 Main report

Key Issues

3.1 Belfast will host the World 24 hour Running Championship in Victoria Park on 1st and 2
July 2017.

3.2 After organising a 24 hour race at Mary Peters Track for a number of years the organiser

made a hugely popular shift to Victoria Park for the 2016 event. This successful event

Page 77



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

demonstrated that Belfast has the ability to host a successful World Championship with
high levels of participants, spectators, logistical support and media coverage. The local
organisers attended the European Championship in October and received the baton for
hosting the World Championship in 2017. The World Championship attracts over 500

participants from over 25 countries.

In December 2015 the City Growth and Regeneration committee agreed to underwrite the
event to a max £10k. The Local Organising Committee is now meeting regularly with
officers attending from Parks and City Events. An event management plan has been
developed and the Parks Events 24 Point Plan has been submitted. Due to the scale of
the event there will be some minor disruption to some existing activities which are required
to satisfy the logistical and technical requirements following the recent visit of the
International Association of Athletics Federations (IAAF) technical official.
= Close the car park for set up of Race HQ, marquees etc in advance of and during
the event. Topaz have offered use of their site for car parking on Airport Road
West
= Request that bowlers arrange no home matches that weekend
= Close tunnel to prevent access of vehicles, bicycles, pedestrians onto the race
circuit and impeding the event
* Provide alternative through access across the Park to Sam Thompson Bridge
= Park Run has agreed to re-locate that weekend

= Ensure no other event bookings go through the park that weekend

Financial & Resource Implications

A bond is not required as the assessment of use shows minimal impact on the ground.

This is evidenced by previous similar event.

Asset and Other Implications

None

Equality & Good Relations Implications

None

4.0

Appendices — Documents Attached

41

None.

Page 78




	Agenda
	2a Connswater Community Greenway progress update
	2c Fuel Poverty Update
	Appendix 1 Fuel Poverty - Correspondence
	Appendix 2  - Membership Winter Planning Group
	Appendix 3 - Eligibility Criteria Keep Warm Packs

	3a Official recognition of the “White Stone on Cave Hill”
	Appendix 1 - Cavehill White Stone

	3b Keyholding Agreement with Clonard Residents Association
	Appendix 1 - Springfield MUGA - Site Location Plan

	3c Renewal of Licence to Use Agreement with Grow
	Appendix 1 - Grow Licence
	Appendix 2 – Grow - Existing boundary map

	3d BMX Race Track
	Appendix 1 Belfast City BMX Correspondence
	Dear Rose,


	4a Parks Events Small Grants Scheme
	Appendix 1- Parks Events Grants Scheme 2016-17

	5a Anti-Social Behaviour (Citywide and Holylands)
	5b Pride of Place Gala Event 2016
	5c Management and Control of Japanese Knotweed
	5d Street Naming/Dual Language
	5e Cancer Research UK - use of Ormeau Park
	5f World 24 hour Running Championship 2017 - Victoria Park

